
Insurance Company
of The Bahamas

A N N U A L  R E P O R T

2017



Corporate Information................................................................................2
Board of Directors.........................................................................................3
The Chairman’s Statement......................................................................4
Managers and Staff......................................................................................5
A Perspective from The General Manager.......................................6
Independent Auditors’ Report..................................................................7
Statement of Financial Position.............................................................8
Statement of Comprehensive Income.............................................10
Statement of Changes in Equity..........................................................11
Statement of Cash Flows.......................................................................12
Notes to Financial Statements............................................................14

Table of Contents

Corporate Information................................................................................2
Board of Directors.........................................................................................3
The Chairman’s Statement......................................................................4
Managers and Staff......................................................................................5
A Perspective from The General Manager.......................................6
A Year of Donations......................................................................................7
Independent Auditors’ Report..................................................................8
Statement of Financial Position.............................................................9
Statement of Comprehensive Income.............................................11
Statement of Changes in Equity..........................................................12
Statement of Cash Flows.......................................................................13
Notes to Financial Statements............................................................15

Table of Contents



Corporate Information................................................................................2
Board of Directors.........................................................................................3
The Chairman’s Statement......................................................................4
Managers and Staff......................................................................................5
A Perspective from The General Manager.......................................6
Independent Auditors’ Report..................................................................7
Statement of Financial Position.............................................................8
Statement of Comprehensive Income.............................................10
Statement of Changes in Equity..........................................................11
Statement of Cash Flows.......................................................................12
Notes to Financial Statements............................................................14

Table of Contents

Corporate Information................................................................................2
Board of Directors.........................................................................................3
The Chairman’s Statement......................................................................4
Managers and Staff......................................................................................5
A Perspective from The General Manager.......................................6
A Year of Donations......................................................................................7
Independent Auditors’ Report..................................................................8
Statement of Financial Position.............................................................9
Statement of Comprehensive Income.............................................11
Statement of Changes in Equity..........................................................12
Statement of Cash Flows.......................................................................13
Notes to Financial Statements............................................................15

Table of Contents



CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHAIRMAN

Marvin V. Bethell, MBE, FCII

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

CHAIRMAN

Alister I. McKellar, FCII

HEAD OFFICE

33 Collins Avenue

P.O. Box N-8320

Nassau, Bahamas

REGISTERED OFFICE

McKinney Bancroft & Hughes

Mareva House

4 George Street

P.O. Box N-3937

Nassau, Bahamas

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

One Montague Place

East Bay  Street

P.O. Box N-3231

Nassau, Bahamas

PRINCIPAL AGENT

J.S. Johnson & Company Ltd.

34 Collins Avenue

P.O. Box N-8337

Nassau, Bahamas

DIRECTORS

Thomas F. Hackett, CA

Barrett H. McDonald, ACII

Basil Christie, MBE, ACII

Wayne J. Aranha, CA

Terry L. Wilcox

GENERAL MANAGER

Tom Duff, ACII

SECRETARY

Gloria J. Forbes

2



3

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Marvin V. Bethell, MBE, FCII
Chairman

Alister I. McKellar, FCII
Director

Basil Christie, MBE, ACII
Director

Terry L. Wilcox 
Director

Thomas F. Hackett, CA
Director

Wayne J. Aranha, CA
Director

ICB 2017



ICB 2017

THE CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Some of the most harrowing images of 2017 were the scenes of devastation 
across much of the Caribbean archipelago in the aftermath of one of the most 
destructive hurricane seasons in living memory. 2017 was the year of the North 
Atlantic “superstorm” with “Harvey”, “Irma” and “Maria” proving to be three of the 
five most costly hurricanes in US history in terms of economic impact. 

Against this backdrop, we can be grateful that The Bahamas was spared a 
visit from these powerful hurricanes, the last two of which reached category 
five status. Unfortunately, Insurance Company of The Bahamas Limited (ICB) 
did not escape the hurricane season unscathed.  ICB underwrites business 
in The Turks and Caicos Islands and, regrettably, Hurricane Irma caused 
substantial damage to the properties we insure in these islands. The final cost 
of the hurricane to ICB was just under $12 million gross and $2 million net of 
reinsurance recoveries. 

Despite the above-mentioned loss from “Irma”, it was pleasing that ICB was still able to post a bottom line 
trading profit of $675,747. This profit was substantially less than we would expect to make in a catastrophe free 
year. In fact, but for our “Irma” loss, net income would have been 57% better than Budget. 

The scale of damage caused by the 2017 superstorms underlines the vital role reinsurance plays in the long-
term viability of general insurance companies in The Bahamas and the wider Caribbean. At ICB, the quality 
of reinsurance security is a vital consideration when setting our reinsurance strategy. We invite only top-rated 
reinsurers to participate in our programme which is placed in the major reinsurance markets of London, Europe, 
Bermuda and Miami. We value the support of our reinsurance partners with many of whom we have strong 
long-term relationships. Once again, we thank them for their speed of response following Hurricane Irma which 
enabled us to settle our customers’ claims in a timely fashion.

Whilst recent hurricane losses have focused attention on the bottom line, it is always important that businesses 
seek to achieve a healthy level of top line growth.  It is pleasing to report, therefore, that ICB increased its Gross 
Written Premium by 5 percent in 2017.  This was very encouraging during a year in which the local economy was 
only just beginning to show some signs of recovery and when competition for business was unexpectedly high 
at times. 

As regards to the short to medium term economic outlook for The Bahamas, I am cautiously optimistic. The 
Baha Mar resort is expected to become fully operational later this year. Also, in Grand Bahama, a $2.5 billion 
project for the development of the former Ginn Sur Mer property is expected to be approved by government in 
the near future. Other substantial projects in both Grand Bahama and New Providence are also moving forward.  
Based on the above, conditions would appear to be a little more favourable for the general insurance industry 
than they have been in recent years. 

Finally, in closing, I would like to record a note of appreciation for our out-going Chairman Dionisio D’Aguilar. 
Dionisio resigned from the Board earlier in the year to focus on his Cabinet position of Minister of Tourism.  
Dionisio served as a director of the Company for 9 years with 8 of those as Chairman.  We thank Dionisio for his 
invaluable contribution to the Board and wish him every success in this important new role. 

Marvin V. Bethell, MBE, FCII
Chairman
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In a year when so many homes and businesses throughout the Caribbean 
suffered such catastrophic losses from superstorms “Harvey”, “Irma” and 
“Maria”, The Bahamas was truly fortunate to have been spared the wrath 
of these storms. From a business perspective, Insurance Company of The 
Bahamas Ltd (ICB) saw net income restricted to $675,747 due to losses 
incurred from “Irma” as the storm passed over the Turks and Caicos Islands. It 
is worth pointing out that since its incorporation in 1997, ICB, with the support 
of our agents and reinsurers, has now dealt successfully with eleven major 
hurricane events, settling claims for a total of $149 million in the process. 
 
As we look ahead, it seems clear that the earth is entering a period where 
sea temperatures are on the rise. This poses major challenges for insurance 
companies worldwide but particularly so for insurers in The Bahamas and 
the Caribbean region. Most weather experts are predicting that warmer than 
average ocean temperatures and low wind shear will result in 2018 being yet 

another active hurricane season.  The question that we cannot answer at this stage is whether this increased 
activity is likely to be the “new norm”.  If the answer proves to be “yes” then clearly the cost of traditional 
catastrophe reinsurance cover will need to rise resulting in higher premiums for our customers. Faced with this 
scenario, governments and insurers throughout the region may be forced to work together to create a range of 
affordable catastrophe insurance products.   

On the back of losses from the above mentioned 2017 superstorms and Hurricane Matthew in 2016, the Region’s 
proportional reinsurers sought to improve their fortunes during the recent treaty renewal season.  Negotiations 
proved to be more challenging than normal and reinsurers’ support for ceding companies in The Bahamas in 
2018 was largely conditional upon the companies being able to deliver projected increases in original Property 
rates. For our part, ICB is working closely with our agents in an effort to meet our rating targets; however, we will 
obviously need the rest of the market to make good on its commitments to reinsurers. 

2018 is likely to be another challenging year for ICB and the Bahamian general insurance industry. As with 
our competitors, we are going to have to operate in an economy that is only slowly coming out of recession. 
Although business confidence is growing, it is likely that consumer spending power will still be relatively weak. 
Additionally, insurers will be forced to accept lower than normal investment returns given the current low interest 
rate environment. Whilst we await the arrival of more favourable trading conditions, we shall be focusing on the 
fundamentals of our business: prudent underwriting and the delivery of first class customer service. 

In closing, I would like to offer a few words of thanks to our treaty reinsurers, whose prompt response to our cash 
calls following Hurricane Irma allowed us to provide speedy payments to our customers.  I must also acknowledge 
the excellent support provided by our reinsurance brokers Aon Benfield (London) during this time and for helping 
us navigate our way through the challenging treaty renewal season later in the year. Our appreciation is also 
extended to our exclusive agents and business partners J.S. Johnson for providing us with their usual high level 
of service throughout the past 12 months. Last, but certainly not least, a special thanks to the management 
and staff of ICB for maintaining their usual high standards during this past year. To everyone mentioned, working 
together, we look forward to a successful 2018.

Tom Duff
General Manager

A PERSPECTIVE FROM THE GENERAL MANAGER
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Independent Auditors’ Report
The Directors 
Insurance Company of The Bahamas Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Insurance Company of The Bahamas Limited (the Company) which comprise the statement of 
financial position as at December 31 2017, and the related statement of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2017 
and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 
a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

March 27, 2018

One Montague Place
3rd Floor
East Bay Street
P.O. Box N-3231
Nassau, Bahamas

Tel: +242 502 6000
Fax: +242 502 6090
ey.com

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Insurance Company of The Bahamas Limited 

Statement of Financial Position 
(Expressed in Bahamian Dollars) 

2017 2016

ASSETS
  Cash and bank balances (Note 5) 5,970,176$           6,635,518$          

  Term deposits  (Note 6) 4,761,057              9,951,511             

  Reinsurance recoverables (Note 4) 15,499,181           44,679,464          

  Due from agents (Note 7) 11,755,435           11,568,115          

  Deferred commission reserve (Note 7) 5,394,368              5,201,634             

  Prepaid reinsurance premiums  (Note 12) 18,421,096           17,623,673          

  Prepayments and other receivables 1,443,645              2,223,538             

  Investments in securities:

    Fair value through profit or loss (Notes 7 and 8) 4,823,631              4,335,000             

    Held-to-maturity (Note 8) 9,961,448              10,600,236          

    Available for sale (Note 8) 5,773,060              5,901,227             

  Investment property (Note 9) 536,916                 536,916                

  Property, plant and equipment (Note 10) 1,234,179              1,207,912             

            Total assets 85,574,192$         120,464,744$      

LIABILITIES

General insurance funds:
  Unearned premium reserve (Note 12) 21,778,705$         20,766,914$        

  Outstanding claims (Note 12) 20,751,023           44,539,856          

42,529,728           65,306,770          

Other liabilities:

  Unearned commission reserve 4,984,489              4,888,646             

  Due to reinsurers (Notes 4 and 7) 7,204,336              20,050,123          

  Accounts payable and accruals (Notes 7 and 16) 392,239                 441,355                

          Total liabilities 55,110,792           90,686,894          

December 31 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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See accompanying notes to financial statements.

These financial statements were authorized for issue on behalf of the Board of Directors on 
March 27, 2018 by:

Approved by the Board:
  

Director                                         Director
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Statement of Financial Position (continued) 
(Expressed in Bahamian Dollars) 
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2017 2016

EQUITY:

  Share capital

  Authorized, issued and fully paid:

     3,000,000 ordinary shares of $1.00 each 3,000,000              3,000,000             

  General reserve (Note 13) 2,000,000              2,000,000             

  Retained earnings 25,412,870           24,737,123          

  Fair Value Reserve 50,530                   40,727                  

          Total equity 30,463,400           29,777,850          

Total liabilities and equity 85,574,192$         120,464,744$      

December 31 

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
 
 

These financial statements were authorized for issue on behalf of the Board of Directors on March 27, 
2018 by: 

Approved by the Board: 
 
   
   
   
   
Director  Director 
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Insurance Company of The Bahamas Limited 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
(Expressed in Bahamian Dollars) 

2017 2016

INCOME
Gross written premiums (Note 7) 47,093,260$          44,627,393$     
Premium tax (1,307,502)              (1,246,558)         

             45,785,758         43,380,835 

Ceded to reinsurers (38,817,366)           (36,918,398)      
Net retained premiums                 6,968,392            6,462,437 
Change in unearned premium reserve (Note 12)                  (214,367)               149,250 

Net premiums earned 6,754,025               6,611,687          

EXPENSES

Net claims incurred (Note 12)                 3,457,126            4,185,653 

Net commissions incurred (Notes 7 and 11)                    476,848               480,729 

Excess of loss reinsurance 2,487,997               2,053,541          

6,421,971               6,719,923          

UNDERWRITING (LOSS)/PROFIT                    332,054             (108,236)

OTHER INCOME
Interest income (Notes 5, 6, and 8)                    663,364               843,033 
Dividend and other income (Note 7)                    562,351               636,749 
Losses on disposal of Investment Property                                  -                (97,333)
Change in net unrealized gains 
  on investments in securities  (Note 8) 488,631                  62,190                

2,046,400               1,336,403          

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel expenses (Notes 7 and 15)                  (769,594)             (689,935)
Depreciation (Notes 9 and 10)                     (41,088)                (43,772)
General and administrative expenses (Note 7)                  (559,971)             (592,198)

Total Operating Expenses               (1,370,653)          (1,325,905)

NET INCOME 675,747$                10,498$             
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit
  or loss in subsequent periods:
    Unrealized gain on available for sale investments 9,803                       10,387                

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 685,550$                20,885$             

Year Ended December 31

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Insurance Company of The Bahamas Limited 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
(Expressed in Bahamian Dollars) 

Year Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 

 

Share General Retained Fair Value

Capital Reserve Earnings Reserve Total

Balance as at December 31, 2015 3,000,000$   2,000,000$   25,605,395$          30,340$                   30,635,735$    

  Total comprehensive income

  for the year:
  Net Income -                  -                  10,498                    -                            10,498              
  Unrealized gain on Available
  for sale securities -                  -                  -                           10,387                     10,387              
  Dividends (Notes 3 and 16) -                  -                  (878,770)                -                            (878,770)           

Balance as at December 31, 2016 3,000,000$   2,000,000$   24,737,123$          40,727$                   29,777,850$    

  Total comprehensive income

  for the year:
  Net Income -                  -                  675,747                  -                            675,747            
  Unrealized gain on Available
  for sale securities -                  -                  -                           9,803                       9,803                 
  Dividends (Notes 3 and 16) -                  -                  -                           -                            -                     

Balance as at December 31, 2017 3,000,000$   2,000,000$   25,412,870$          50,530$                   30,463,400$    
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Insurance Company of The Bahamas Limited 

Statement of Cash Flows 
(Expressed in Bahamian Dollars) 

2017 2016

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income  $           675,747  $             10,498 

Adjustments for:

  Unearned premium reserve change (Note 8)               214,367             (149,250)

  Interest income (Note 5, 6 and 8)             (663,364)             (843,033)

  Dividend income             (456,171)             (437,041)

  Change in net unrealized gain on investments in securities (Note 8)             (488,631)                (62,190)

  Loss on disposal of Investment Property                             -                 97,333 

  Loss on disposal of Furniture and Computer Equipment                    4,605                             - 

  Depreciation (Note 9 and 10)                 41,088                 43,772 
Operating loss before changes in operating assets 

   and liabilities             (672,360)          (1,339,911)

(Increase) decrease in assets:

  Reinsurance recoverables         29,180,283        (36,320,862)

  Due from agent             (187,320)          (6,316,396)

  Deferred commission reserve             (192,734)                    2,700 

  Prepaid reinsurance premiums             (797,423)             (213,287)

  Prepayments and other receivables               737,296          (1,793,940)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

  Unearned premium reserve               797,423               213,286 

  Outstanding claims        (23,788,833)         35,062,057 

  Unearned commission reserve                 95,843                 38,709 

  Due to reinsurers        (12,845,787)         16,628,037 

  Accounts payable and accruals                (49,116)                 26,430 

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities          (7,722,728)            5,986,823 

Year Ended December 31
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Insurance Company of The Bahamas Limited 

Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 
(Expressed in Bahamian Dollars) 

 
 9 

 

2017 2016

Investing activities
  Net placement of term deposits            5,102,843                (85,893)
  Purchase of property, plant and equipment (Note 10)                (71,960)                (22,944)
  Purchase of investments in securities (Note 8)               500,000          (1,078,750)
  Proceeds from principal repayments (Note 8)               250,066               103,346 
  Interest received               777,668               744,529 
  Dividends received               498,769               470,362 
  Proceeds from sale of investment property                             -               150,000 

Net cash provided by investing activities            7,057,386               280,650 

Financing activities
  Dividends paid                             -             (869,580)

  Net cash used in financing activities                             -             (869,580)

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents             (665,342)            5,397,893 

  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year            6,635,518            1,237,625 

  Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $       5,970,176  $       6,635,518 

Supplemental information
   Premium tax paid  $       1,322,877  $       1,180,269 

Year Ended December 31

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Insurance Company of The Bahamas Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
(Expressed in Bahamian Dollars)

1. Incorporation and Principal Activity
Insurance Company of The Bahamas Limited (“the Company”) is incorporated under the Companies Act, 1992 of The 
Commonwealth of The Bahamas and is licensed to operate as a property and casualty insurance company in The Bahamas 
under the Insurance Act, 2005, as amended, and Turks & Caicos Islands, B.W.I. under the Insurance Ordinance, 1989, 
amended December 2014.  The parent of the Company is J.S. Johnson & Company Limited (“J.S. Johnson”) which holds 
40% of the Company’s issued shares.  J.S. Johnson and its subsidiaries carry on business as agents and brokers in general 
insurance in The Bahamas and the Turks & Caicos Islands.

The registered office of the Company is situated at the offices of Messrs. McKinney, Bancroft & Hughes, Mareva House, 4 
George Street, Nassau, The Bahamas. The Company’s principal place of business is located at 33 Collins Avenue, Nassau, 
The Bahamas.

2. Basis of Preparation
(a) Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

(b) Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for financial assets and financial liabilities 
that have been measured at fair value.

The methods used to measure fair value are discussed further in the significant accounting policies below.

(c) Functional and Presentation Currency
These financial statements are presented in Bahamian dollars, which is the Company’s functional and reporting currency.

(d) Use of Estimates and Judgements
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets 
or liabilities affected in future periods. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized 
in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting 
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are described in Notes 
3(a), 3(d), 3(e), 3(f), 3(g), 8, 9, 10, 12 and 17.

(e) New and amended standards and interpretations 
The Company applied for the first time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2017.  The Company has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has 
been issued but is not yet effective. The nature of each new standard or amendment is described below:

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative
The amendments require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities, including 
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or losses).

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses
The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits against 
which it may make deductions on the reversal of deductible temporary difference related to unrealized losses. Furthermore, 
the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances 

14
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in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.

Amendments to IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Clarification of the scope of disclosure requirements in 
IFRS 12
The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in IFRS 12, other than those in paragraphs B10–B16, apply to an 
entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate) 
that is classified (or included in a disposal Company that is classified) as held for sale.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the Company and are consistent with 
those used in the previous year.

(a) Insurance Contracts
(i) Classification, Recognition, and Measurement
The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. Insurance contracts are those contracts 
that transfer insurance risks. Such contracts may also transfer financial risk. The Company considers an insurance risk to 
be significant where the sum insured or limit of indemnity exceeds $250,000. The classification of contracts identifies both 
the insurance and reinsurance contracts entered into by the Company.

Short term insurance contracts consist of Property, Casualty, Motor, and Marine insurance contracts.

Property insurance contracts, both personal and commercial, provide compensation for loss, or damage to property. 
Business Interruption coverage provides compensation for loss of earnings following physical damage to the insured 
premises.

Casualty/liability insurance contracts protect the insured against the risk of causing financial loss or injury to third parties 
following some act of negligence. Liabilities covered include both contractual and non-contractual. Two of the most 
common protections offered are “Employer’s Liability”, designed to indemnify employers who become legally liable to pay 
compensation to injured employees and “Public Liability”, designed to indemnify individuals and businesses that become 
legally liable to pay compensation to third parties.

Motor insurance contracts cover the driver’s liability to third parties in respect of personal injury or property damage. If 
comprehensive cover is purchased, the policy also covers damage to the policyholder’s vehicle.
 
Marine insurance contracts include the insurance of goods in transit over land or sea and also the insurance of hulls. Hull 
insurances typically cover both physical damage to the vessel and also the boat owner’s liability to third parties in respect 
of personal injury or property damage.

Premiums generated from insurance and inwards reinsurance contracts are recognized as revenue (gross written premiums) 
proportionally over the period of coverage. The portion of premium received on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired 
risks at the reporting date is reported as unearned premium reserve, calculated using net retained premiums. Gross written 
premiums are shown before deduction of premium tax, premiums ceded to reinsurers, and commissions. Premiums received 
prior to the year end and processed after the year end by the agent are recognized at the time of processing.

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to income as incurred based on the known or estimated liability for 
compensation owed to policyholders or third parties. They include direct or indirect claims settlement costs and arise from 
events that have occurred up to the reporting date regardless of whether or not they have been reported. Gross outstanding 
claims comprise the estimated cost of all claims incurred but not settled as of the reporting date whether reported or not. 
The Company does not discount its liabilities for outstanding claims. Liabilities for outstanding claims are estimated using: 
(a) the judgement of the agency’s claims manager in regards to routine claims, (b) external legal opinion in connection with 
more complex claims, and (c) statistical analyses for claims incurred but not reported.
 
(ii) Liability Adequacy Test
At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities. Tests include 
reviewing original estimates of ultimate claims cost for each accident year against the current year-end estimates. These 
tests are carried out at the portfolio level for the classes of motor and casualty lines of business. Should any trend in reserve 
deficiency, at total portfolio level, become apparent, then the deficiency would be immediately charged to income or loss by 
establishing a provision for losses arising from liability adequacy tests.

(iii)  Reinsurance Contracts Held and Assumed
The Company cedes (or assumes) reinsurance under a variety of formal treaty arrangements, with retention limits varying by 
the line of business. Under these treaties, which are classified as reinsurance contracts held (or assumed), the Company is 
compensated (or compensates) in respect of one or more losses under contracts that meet the classification requirements 
for insurance contracts.
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Contracts that do not meet these classification requirements are classified as financial assets (or financial liabilities).

The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognized as reinsurance assets. 
These assets are classified as reinsurance recoverables and comprise:

(a) recoverables due from reinsurers in respect of claims paid, and
(b) the reinsured portion of the reserves for outstanding claims allocated in accordance with the treaty arrangements 
  for the class of business in question.

Amounts paid to the reinsurers relating to the unexpired portion of reinsured contracts are classified as prepaid reinsurance 
premiums.

Reinsurance liabilities are classified as due to reinsurers and are primarily premiums payable under treaty reinsurance 
contracts after deduction of reinsurance recoverables on proportional contracts. Premiums to be ceded are recognized as 
an expense from the date the gross premiums are written and over the term of the reinsurance contract in the statement of 
comprehensive income.

Amounts shown as reinsurance recoverables, prepaid reinsurance premiums or due to  reinsurers are measured consistently 
with the amounts associated with reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance 
contract.

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for any indication of impairment on an ongoing basis.  If there is objective 
evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to 
its recoverable amount and recognizes that impairment loss in the statement of comprehensive income. The Company 
gathers the objective evidence that a reinsurance asset is impaired using the same process adopted for financial assets 
held at amortized cost. The impairment loss is also calculated following the same method used for these financial assets. 
These processes are described in Note 3(g).

(iv) Portfolio Transfer
At the anniversary date of the reinsurance agreements and at the Company’s option, proportional reinsurers agree to assume 
the unexpired liability of all risks in force at such anniversary date. The unexpired liability is computed in accordance with 
the method outlined in the reinsurance agreement and accounted for when determined in the statement of comprehensive 
income.
 
(v) Receivables and Payables Related to Insurance Contracts
Receivables and payables are recognized when the contractual right to receive payment and contractual obligation to make 
payment arise, respectively. These include amounts due to and from agent and reinsurers and are assessed for impairment 
and doubtful accounts. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, no provision was made for impairment or doubtful accounts.

(vi)  Fronting Arrangements
Gross Written Premium includes the risk premium from fronting arrangements whereby the company reinsures one hundred 
percent of an individual risk to an insurer not licensed to transact business in The Bahamas.  The reinsured amounts are 
included within the amount shown as “Ceded to reinsurers”.  For 2017, the total risk premium pertaining to such arrangements 
amounts to $3,137,707 (2016: $2,725,926) Note 7.

(b) Income and Expense Recognition
Premiums are recognized as revenue over the periods covered by the related policies after allowing for premiums ceded.

Commission expense is incurred on gross written premiums and commission income is received on premiums ceded, and 
these are recognized over the periods covered by the related policies.

Other revenues and expenses of the Company are recognized on an accrual basis, except for:

i. Dividend income – recognized when the Company’s right to receive payment has been established.

ii. Loyalty commission income and profit commission expense – recognized when the Company’s right to     
   receive, or obligation to make payment has been established.

iii. Treaty profit commission income – recognized in the year in which it is paid by reinsurers.

iv. Fronting fees – recognized when premiums are billed to customers as the Company has no further service 
 obligations associated with these fees.
 
(c) Foreign Currency Translation
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to the functional 
currency at the exchange rate prevailing at that date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional 
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currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from 
settlement of such transactions and from translation of monetary assets and liabilities at year-end exchange rates are 
recognized in net income or loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated to 
the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the dates that the values were determined. All foreign currency 
exchange differences relating to monetary items, including cash and cash equivalents, are recognized in the statement of 
comprehensive income.

(d) Investment Property
The Company classifies property held for capital appreciation as investment property. Investment property is carried at cost 
and measured in accordance with IAS 40 Property, Plant, and Equipment, and is stated at historical cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses. No depreciation is taken on land. The carrying value of investment property is assessed 
annually for any impairment losses.

The Company performs annual impairment assessments based on fair value less cost to sell. The fair value of investment 
property is determined by third-party professional appraisals, which are performed every three years. The fair value of the 
investment property is based on market values, being the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on 
the date of the valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing 
wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.

(e) Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment, except for land, are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. Land is stated at cost and not subject to depreciation.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. When parts of an item of property, 
plant, and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, 
plant, and equipment. The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant, and equipment is recognized in the carrying 
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and 
its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in 
net income or loss in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

Depreciation is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight line basis over the estimated useful 
lives of the items of the assets, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic 
benefits embodied in the asset.

The estimated useful lives and depreciation rates for the current and corresponding period are as follows:

 

When the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to 
its recoverable amount. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted if appropriate. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts and 
are included in other income on the statement of comprehensive income. Repairs and maintenance are charged to net 
income or loss in the statement of comprehensive income when the expenditure is incurred.

(f) Financial Instruments
Financial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities, term deposits, loans and receivables, cash and 
cash equivalents and accounts payable and accruals.

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value through profit or loss, any 
directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial instruments are measured as described 
below.

Useful Lives Depreciation 
Rates

Buildings 50 2%
Office furniture and equipment 6.67 15%
Computer equipment 5 20%
Motor vehicles 4 25%
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A financial instrument is recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for at trade date, that is, the date the Company commits 
itself to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are derecognized when the Company’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets 
expire or if the Company transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control of substantially all risks and 
rewards of the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognized if the Company’s obligations specified in the contract expire or 
are discharged or cancelled.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and deposits held with financial institutions with original maturities of less than 
three months. Bank overdraft and margin loan, if any, that is repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s 
cash management is included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.
 

(i) Investments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
An instrument is classified as held at fair value through profit or loss if it is acquired for the purposes of selling in the near 
term, and which may be disposed of in response to the needs for liquidity, or changes in interest rates, exchange rates, or 
equity prices or is designated as such upon initial recognition.

Financial assets classified as held at fair value through profit or loss include investments in equity securities.

Upon initial recognition, attributable transaction costs are recognized in income or loss when incurred. Financial 
instruments classified as held at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, and changes therein are 
recognized in net income or loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

(ii) Investments Held-to-Maturity
Financial assets and liabilities with fixed dates of maturity that management has the intent and ability to hold to maturity 
are classified as held-to-maturity. Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity include Government debt instruments 
and corporate bonds. Investments held-to-maturity are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, 
less any impairment losses.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at initial 
recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method 
of any difference between the initial amount recognized and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

Any sale or reclassification of a more than insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments not close to their maturity 
would result in the reclassification of all held-to-maturity investments as available for sale, and prevent the Company from 
classifying investment securities as held-to-maturity for the current and the following two financial years.
 
(iii) Available For Sale Investments
Available for sale investments are financial assets and liabilities that are either designated in this category or are not 
classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or investments at fair value through profit or loss. 
Financial assets classified as available for sale investments include preferred shares and mutual funds and are measured 
at fair value less any impairment losses.

Changes in fair value, other than impairment losses, are recognized in other comprehensive income in the statement of 
comprehensive income and presented within equity in the fair value reserve. When an investment is derecognized, the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is transferred to net income or loss in the 
statement of comprehensive income.

(iv) Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market 
and are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition 
loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Receivables arising from insurance contracts, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents are classified in this 
category.

(v) Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is 
a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
 
(vi) Fair Value Measurement
‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
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the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either; in the principal or, in the absence of a principal 
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or most advantageous market must be 
accessible by the company.

When available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that 
instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and 
volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Any equity security that does not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably 
measured is stated at cost, including transaction costs, less impairment losses, if any. If a reliable measure of fair value 
becomes available subsequently, the instrument is measured at fair value.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price (i.e, the 
fair value of the consideration given or received). If the Company determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs 
from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical 
asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the financial 
instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition 
and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life 
of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction 
is closed out.
 
If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Company measures assets and 
long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price.

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs 
used in making the measurements:

Level 1 – quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.

Level 2 – valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from 
prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; 
quoted market prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation 
techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3 – valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments where the 
valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect 
on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar 
instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the 
instruments.

(g) Impairment
(i) Financial Assets
A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative 
effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can include default or delinquency by 
a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise, or 
indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy. Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment 
on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk 
characteristics.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the difference between 
its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective 
interest rate. All impairment losses are recognized in net income or loss and reflected in an allowance account against 
receivables. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment 
loss is reversed through net income or loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment losses on available for sale investment securities are recognized by transferring the cumulative loss that 
has been recognized in other comprehensive income, and presented in the fair value reserve in equity, to income or 
loss. The cumulative loss that is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in income or loss is the 
difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and amortization, and the current fair value, less 
any impairment loss previously recognized in net income or loss. Changes in impairment provisions attributable to time 
value are reflected as a component of interest income.
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If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired available for sale debt security increases and the increase can be 
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in income or loss, then the impairment 
loss is reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognized in income or loss. However, any subsequent recovery in the 
fair value of an impaired available for sale equity security is recognized in other comprehensive income.

(ii)    Non-Financial Assets
The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment 
loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized 
in income or loss. Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications 
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no 
impairment loss had been recognized.

(h) Taxation

(i)   Premium Tax
Premium tax is incurred at a rate of 3.00% of gross written premiums in The Commonwealth of The Bahamas and 2.50% 
of gross written premiums in the Turks & Caicos Islands, BWI. Premium tax is recognized when the Company’s obligation 
to make payment has been established.

(ii)   Value Added Tax
Value Added Tax (“VAT”) is a consumption tax that is charged on most goods and services provided in The Bahamas from 
a registered business. Registration is required for all businesses that exceed $100,000 in taxable activity for the past 12 
months. The Company is a VAT registrant and is required to collect, file and remit VAT payments from all taxable activity 
within the prescribed due dates. The VAT charged on goods and services is either the standard rate of 7.50% or zero 
percent. These do not include goods and services that are deemed exempt.  

(i)      Employee Benefits
The Company has a defined contribution pension plan for eligible employees whereby the Company pays contributions to 
a privately administered pension plan. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been 
paid. The plan requires participants to contribute 5.00% of their eligible earnings and such amounts are matched by the 
Company. The Company’s contributions to the defined contribution pension plan are charged to income or loss in the year 
to which they relate.

(j) Related Parties
In accordance with IAS 24 Related party disclosures, related entities, shareholders, directors, and key management 
personnel who have authority and responsibility for planning, directing, control, joint control and significant influence over 
the activities of the Company directly or indirectly through control or significant influence over the aforementioned parties 
are classified as related parties.

(k) Dividends
Dividends proposed or declared after the reporting date are not recognized at the reporting date.

(l) New Standards, Interpretations, and Amendments to Published Standards Relevant to the Company That are Not 
 Yet Effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s 
financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become 
effective. The Company is currently assessing the impact of the new and revised standards, however, does not anticipate 
any material impact on the results of its operations from the implementation of these new standards when they become 
effective.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments that replaces IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 brings together all three
aspects of the accounting for financial instruments project: classification and measurement, impairment 
and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with 
early application permitted. Except for hedge accounting, retrospective application is required but providing 
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comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied 
prospectively, with some limited exceptions. The Company plans to adopt the new standard on the required 
effective date. The Company has no designated hedges but is currently assessing the impact of the below 
changes in the standard on the financial statements.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
For financial liabilities designated as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) using the fair value option (FVO),
the amount of change in the fair value of such financial liabilities that is attributable to changes in credit risk 
must be presented in other comprehensive income (OCI). The remainder of the change in fair value is presented 
in profit or loss, unless presentation in OCI of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk would 
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. All other IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities have been carried 
forward into IFRS 9, including the embedded derivative separation rules and the criteria for using the FVO.

Impairment
The impairment requirements are based on an expected credit loss (ECL) model that replaces the IAS 39
incurred loss model. The ECL model applies to debt instruments accounted for at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), most loan commitments, financial guarantee contracts, contract
assets under IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and lease receivables under IAS 17 Leases or
IFRS 16 Leases.

Entities are generally required to recognize 12-month ECL on initial recognition (or when the commitment or 
guarantee was entered into) and thereafter as long as there is no significant deterioration in credit risk. However,
if there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an individual or collective basis, then entities are required
to recognize lifetime ECL. For trade receivables, a simplified approach may be applied whereby the lifetime ECL
are always recognized.

Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
In September 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 4 to address issues arising from the different effective
dates of IFRS 9 and the new insurance contracts standard (IFRS 17).

The amendments introduce two alternative options of applying IFRS 9 for entities issuing contracts within the
scope of IFRS 4: a temporary exemption; and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption enables eligible
entities to defer the implementation date of IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2021 and
continue to apply IAS 39 to financial assets and liabilities.

An entity may apply the temporary exemption from IFRS 9 if: (i) it has not previously applied any version of IFRS
9, other than only the requirements for the presentation of gains and losses on financial liabilities designated as
FVPL; and (ii) its activities are predominantly connected with insurance on its annual reporting date that 
immediately precedes 1 April 2016. The overlay approach allows an entity applying IFRS 9 to reclassify between
profit or loss and other comprehensive income an amount that results in the profit or loss at the end of the 
reporting period for certain designated financial assets being the same as if an entity had applied IAS 39 to 
these designated financial assets. An entity can apply the temporary exemption from IFRS 9 for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. An entity may start applying the overlay approach when it applies IFRS 9
for the first time.

During 2016, the Company performed an assessment of the amendments and reached the conclusion that its
activities are predominantly connected with insurance as at 31 December 2016. During 2017, there had been no 
significant change in the activities of the Company that requires reassessment. The Company is still assessing
whether to avail the temporary exemption or apply the overlap approach under IFRS 9 to its financial assets and
liabilities in its reporting year starting 1 January 2018.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The new revenue 
standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full retrospective 
application or a modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after January 
1, 2018.
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IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, nonlife, direct insurance and re-insurance),
regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with
discretionary participation features. The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for 
insurance contracts that is more useful and consistent for insurers. IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods 
starting on or after 1 January 2021, with comparative figures required. Early application is permitted, provided 
the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the date it first applies IFRS 17.

IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
The interpretation clarifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a nonmonetary asset or non-monetary liability
relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognizes 
the non-monetary asset or nonmonetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine a date of the transactions for each payment or
receipt of advance consideration. This is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

 
4. Underwriting Policies and Reinsurance Agreements
The Company follows the policy of underwriting and reinsuring all contracts of insurance, which limit the retained 
liability of the Company. The reinsurance of contracts does not, however, relieve the Company of its primary 
obligation to the policyholders. In the event that the reinsurers are unable to meet their obligations under the 
reinsurance agreements, the Company would also be liable for the reinsured amount. The Company’s credit risk 
management procedures are detailed in Note 17.

Aon Limited, whose registered office is in London, England, a related party, is the Company’s reinsurance broker 
and acts as the intermediary between the Company and the reinsurers. Reinsurance contracts between the 
Company and its reinsurers are renewable annually in accordance with the terms of the individual contracts.

                       

Amounts due to reinsurers of $7,204,336 (2016 – $20,050,123) represent premiums ceded to the reinsurers as 
at December 31, 2017, less reinsurance recoverable on proportional contracts.

5. Cash and Bank Balances
The Company earned no interest (2016 – varying rates up to 0.50%) per annum on accounts denominated in
Bahamian dollars. Interest earned on demand deposits amounted to $-0 (2016 – $2,290).

6. Term Deposits
Term deposits with banks include accrued interest totalling $158,096 (2016 – $245,707). The term deposits 
are held for more than three months from the date of acquisition and have the following maturities and interest 
rates.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 

The interpretation clarifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related 
asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a nonmonetary asset or non-monetary liability 
relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognizes the 
non-monetary asset or nonmonetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple 
payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine a date of the transactions for each payment or 
receipt of advance consideration. This is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.  

4. Underwriting Policies and Reinsurance Agreements 

The Company follows the policy of underwriting and reinsuring all contracts of insurance, which limit the retained 
liability of the Company. The reinsurance of contracts does not, however, relieve the Company of its primary 
obligation to the policyholders. In the event that the reinsurers are unable to meet their obligations under the 
reinsurance agreements, the Company would also be liable for the reinsured amount. The Company’s credit risk 
management procedures are detailed in Note 17. 

Aon Limited, whose registered office is in London, England, a related party, is the Company’s reinsurance broker 
and acts as the intermediary between the Company and the reinsurers. Reinsurance contracts between the 
Company and its reinsurers are renewable annually in accordance with the terms of the individual contracts. 

																		

2017 2016

Recoverables under excess of loss reinsurance
  for claims paid and outstanding (1,621,187)$               6,843,523$                 

Recoverables under proportional contracts for
  outstanding claims (Note 12) 17,120,368                 37,835,941                 

15,499,181$              44,679,464$              

 

Amounts due to reinsurers of $7,204,336 (2016 – $20,050,123) represent premiums ceded to the reinsurers as at 
December 31, 2017, less reinsurance recoverable on proportional contracts.
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To meet its requirement under the Insurance Act 2005 in The Bahamas, as outlined in Note 18 under capital 
management, the Company renewed its term deposit of $1,208,596 (2016 – $1,179,118) with a maturity date 
of December 21, 2018, and it is held with a recognized financial institution in The Bahamas.

The Company is also required under the Insurance Regulations in Turks and Caicos to meet certain capital 
requirements as outlined in Note 18, and as such holds a restricted deposit of $513,004 (2016 – $507,784), 
with a maturity date of December 6, 2018, with a recognized financial institution in Turks and Caicos.

7. Related Parties Balances and Transactions
J.S. Johnson, the Company’s parent, serves as its sole agent (referred to as agent) in accordance with the 
Agency Agreement entered on January 1, 2000. The remaining shareholders of the Company represent certain 
shareholders and key management personnel of J.S. Johnson. The Company and J.S. Johnson also have certain 
directors in common. Aon UK Holdings Intermediaries Ltd. (formerly Bain Hogg Management Ltd.), a company 
incorporated in the United Kingdom, and a subsidiary of Aon Limited (“Aon”), is the principal shareholder of J.S. 
Johnson.  Aon, through its subsidiaries, serves as the Company’s reinsurance broker. Amounts due from agent 
are interest free and are settled over a 65-day period. Included in this balance is $500,000 held for the purpose 
of settling claims.

The financial statements include the following balances and transactions with related parties:
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5. Cash and Bank Balances 

The Company earned no interest (2016 – varying rates up to 0.50%) per annum on accounts denominated in 
Bahamian dollars. Interest earned on demand deposits amounted to $-0 (2016 – $2,290). 

6. Term Deposits 

Term deposits with banks include accrued interest totalling $158,096 (2016 – $245,707). The term deposits are 
held for more than three months from the date of acquisition and have the following maturities and interest rates. 

  

Interest Interest

Rates – 2017 2017 Rates – 2016 2016

3 months to one year 1.13%-1.75%  $              1,722,577 1.0279%-3.00%  $          5,367,038 

Over one to five years 2.25%-2.75%                   3,038,480 2.75%-4.25% 4,584,473

 $              4,761,057  $          9,951,511 
 

To meet its requirement under the Insurance Act 2005 in The Bahamas, as outlined in Note 18 under capital 
management, the Company renewed its term deposit of $1,208,596 (2016 – $1,179,118) with a maturity date of 
December 21, 2018, and it is held with a recognized financial institution in The Bahamas. 

The Company is also required under the Insurance Regulations in Turks and Caicos to meet certain capital 
requirements as outlined in Note 18, and as such holds a restricted deposit of $513,004 (2016 – $507,784), with a 
maturity date of December 6, 2018, with a recognized financial institution in Turks and Caicos. 

7. Related Parties Balances and Transactions 

J.S. Johnson, the Company’s parent, serves as its sole agent (referred to as agent) in accordance with the Agency 
Agreement entered on January 1, 2000. The remaining shareholders of the Company represent certain 
shareholders and key management personnel of J.S. Johnson. The Company and J.S. Johnson also have certain 
directors in common. Aon UK Holdings Intermediaries Ltd. (formerly Bain Hogg Management Ltd.), a company 
incorporated in the United Kingdom, and a subsidiary of Aon Limited (“Aon”), is the principal shareholder of J.S. 
Johnson.  Aon, through its subsidiaries, serves as the Company’s reinsurance broker. Amounts due from agent are 
interest free and are settled over a 65-day period. Included in this balance is $500,000 held for the purpose of 
settling claims. 
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7. Related Parties Balances and Transactions (continued) 

The financial statements include the following balances and transactions with related parties: 

  

2017 2016

Balances

Parent Company

  Due from agents 11,755,435$               11,568,115$        

  Deferred commission reserve 5,394,368                    5,201,634             

  Investments in securities – fair value through
     profit or loss (Note 8) 375,300                       357,900                

   Accounts payable and accruals (4,100)                           (4,100)                   

Related Entity

   Due to reinsurers (7,204,336)                   (20,050,123)         

Directors

   Directors fees payable (20,000)                        (20,000)                 

Transactions

Parent Company

   Gross Premiums written 43,955,553                  41,901,467          

   Gross Premiums written - fronting arrangements 3,137,707                    2,725,926             

   Dividend income 17,400                          19,200                  
   Commission expense (Note 11) (10,780,939)                (10,237,549)         

   Net profit and loyalty commission – agent commission expense 303,755                       911,660                

   General and administrative expenses – management fees (70,000)                        (60,000)                 

   Dividend paid -                                     351,508                

   Advertisement expenses 10,000                          10,000                  

Other Shareholders

   Dividend paid -                                     527,262                
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8. Investments in Securities
(i) Securities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Securities at fair value through profit or loss principally comprise marketable equity securities, which are listed on The 
Bahamas International Securities Exchange, and are stated at fair value using quoted bid prices. Movements during the 
year were as follows:

As of December 31, 2017, the cost of securities fair valued through profit or loss was $2,387,213 (2016 –
$2,387,213).

The Company holds 30,000 (2016 – 30,000) shares of J.S. Johnson valued at $375,300 (2016 – $357,900)
(Note 7) at a cost of $211,500 (2016 – $211,500).

(ii) Held-to-Maturity Securities

Held-to-Maturity securities consist of the following:
       
  

Included in amortized costs for held-to-maturity investments is accrued interest totalling $123,726 (2016 – $150,419).
In accordance with the Note Purchase Agreement dated March 20, 2009, for Nassau Airport Development Company – Senior 
Secured Note, the issuer has exercised its rights under the Agreement to prepay the principal in a number of instalments 
until the maturity date in 2031. During 2017, the Company received $23,750 (2016 – $15,000) towards the principal of the 
Secured Note.

In accordance with the Note Purchase Agreement dated June 24, 2011, for The College of The Bahamas, the issuer has 
exercised its rights under the Agreement to prepay the principal in a number of instalments until the maturity date in 2026. 
During 2017, the Company received $35,714 (2016 – $35,714) towards the principal of the Secured Note.

In accordance with the Note Purchase Agreement dated November 13, 2013, for Public Hospital Authority, the issuer has 
exercised its rights under the Agreement to prepay the principal in a number of instalments until the maturity date in 2033. 
During 2017, the Company received $52,632 (2016 – $52,632) towards the principal of the Secured Note.
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8. Investments in Securities 

(i) Securities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 

Securities at fair value through profit or loss principally comprise marketable equity securities, which are listed on 
The Bahamas International Securities Exchange, and are stated at fair value using quoted bid prices. Movements 
during the year were as follows: 

																

2017 2016

As of beginning of year 4,335,000$            4,194,060$            

Additions -                                78,750                    
Change in net unrealized gains during the year 488,631                  62,190                    

As of end of year 4,823,631$            4,335,000$            
 

As of December 31, 2017, the cost of securities fair valued through profit or loss was $2,387,213 (2016 – 
$2,387,213). 

The Company holds 30,000 (2016 – 30,000) shares of J.S. Johnson valued at $375,300 (2016 – $357,900) 
(Note 7) at a cost of $211,500 (2016 – $211,500). 

(ii) Held-to-Maturity Securities 

Held-to-Maturity securities consist of the following: 

Amortized 
Cost

Amortized 
Cost

Interest Rates Maturity 2017 Interest Rates Maturity 2016
Bahamas Electricity Corporation Bond 6.40% 2021 500,792         6.40% 2021 500,792         
Bahamas Government Registered Stock 4.39% - 4.88% 2019-2037 5,822,384      4.89% - 5.37% 2019-2037 5,831,727      
Bahamas Government Stock Tranche 1 6.25% 2044 501,370         6.25% 2044 501,370         
Bahamas Government Stock Tranche 2 4.50% 2022 1,021,674      4.50% 2022 1,021,674      
Clifton Heritage Authority 5.50% 2035 283,139         5.50% 2035 283,139         
College of The Bahamas 7.00% 2026 321,490         7.00% 2026 357,143         
Fidelity Bank (Bahamas) Ltd. 7.00% 2017 -                       7.00% 2017 507,000         
Fidelity Bank (Bahamas) Ltd. 6.00% 2018 100,510         6.00% 2018 100,510         
Nassau Airport Dev. Co. Senior Notes 8.50% 2031 425,000         8.50% 2031 458,364         
The Bridge Authority Bond 6.25% 2024 130,250         6.25% 2024 130,250         
Public Hospital Authority Ser A 6.00% 2033 854,840         6.00% 2033 908,267         

9,961,448$   10,600,236$ 
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8. Investments in Securities 

(i) Securities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 

Securities at fair value through profit or loss principally comprise marketable equity securities, which are listed on 
The Bahamas International Securities Exchange, and are stated at fair value using quoted bid prices. Movements 
during the year were as follows: 

																

2017 2016

As of beginning of year 4,335,000$            4,194,060$            

Additions -                                78,750                    
Change in net unrealized gains during the year 488,631                  62,190                    

As of end of year 4,823,631$            4,335,000$            
 

As of December 31, 2017, the cost of securities fair valued through profit or loss was $2,387,213 (2016 – 
$2,387,213). 

The Company holds 30,000 (2016 – 30,000) shares of J.S. Johnson valued at $375,300 (2016 – $357,900) 
(Note 7) at a cost of $211,500 (2016 – $211,500). 

(ii) Held-to-Maturity Securities 

Held-to-Maturity securities consist of the following: 

Amortized 
Cost

Amortized 
Cost

Interest Rates Maturity 2017 Interest Rates Maturity 2016
Bahamas Electricity Corporation Bond 6.40% 2021 500,792         6.40% 2021 500,792         
Bahamas Government Registered Stock 4.39% - 4.88% 2019-2037 5,822,384      4.89% - 5.37% 2019-2037 5,831,727      
Bahamas Government Stock Tranche 1 6.25% 2044 501,370         6.25% 2044 501,370         
Bahamas Government Stock Tranche 2 4.50% 2022 1,021,674      4.50% 2022 1,021,674      
Clifton Heritage Authority 5.50% 2035 283,139         5.50% 2035 283,139         
College of The Bahamas 7.00% 2026 321,490         7.00% 2026 357,143         
Fidelity Bank (Bahamas) Ltd. 7.00% 2017 -                       7.00% 2017 507,000         
Fidelity Bank (Bahamas) Ltd. 6.00% 2018 100,510         6.00% 2018 100,510         
Nassau Airport Dev. Co. Senior Notes 8.50% 2031 425,000         8.50% 2031 458,364         
The Bridge Authority Bond 6.25% 2024 130,250         6.25% 2024 130,250         
Public Hospital Authority Ser A 6.00% 2033 854,840         6.00% 2033 908,267         

9,961,448$   10,600,236$ 
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(iii) Available-For-Sale Securities

     

Included in prepayments and other receivables is $11,737 (2016 – $54,333) relating to dividends receivable at December 
31, 2017.

(iv)  Fair Value Hierarchy
Securities at fair value through profit or loss and available for sale securities are categorized as Level 2 as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016. There has been no transfer of financial instruments between Level 1 and Level 2
during each of the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments:
The Company’s financial instruments are either measured at fair value as of the reporting date or are carried at
values that approximate fair value. Except for balances due from agents, fair value estimates are made at a
specific point in time, based on market conditions, and information about the financial instrument. These estimates
are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgement and therefore, cannot be
determined with precision.
 
Except as stated elsewhere in the notes, the carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities 
approximate their fair values due to one or both of the following reasons:

• immediate or short-term maturity;
• carrying amount approximates or equals market value.

Because of the interest-free nature and uncertainty surrounding the timing of the settlement of balances due from agent, 
and outstanding claims, management is unable to estimate the fair value of these financial instruments.

9. Investment Properties
As at December 31, 2017, the Company’s investment property is comprised of one parcel of land, with a carrying
value of $536,916 (2016 – $536,916).

During 2016, an Investment property, which comprised land and building and had a net carrying value of $597,333,
was sold at a loss of $97,333. A receivable from this sale of $350,000 will be repaid over 7 years at a rate of 7% in
eighty-four (84) equal installments. At December 31, 2017 the receivable from this sale was $160,398 (2016 -
$350,000).

Investment property is assessed annually for any indication of impairment, one of the factors being considered is
the estimated fair value. The Company has a policy in place to perform appraisals every three years for the
purpose of facilitating impairment assessment only as the Company uses the cost method.

No depreciation charged on land in the statement of comprehensive income (2016 – $7,822 was the depreciation
charge on building).
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8. Investments in Securities 

(i) Securities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 

Securities at fair value through profit or loss principally comprise marketable equity securities, which are listed on 
The Bahamas International Securities Exchange, and are stated at fair value using quoted bid prices. Movements 
during the year were as follows: 

																

2017 2016

As of beginning of year 4,335,000$            4,194,060$            

Additions -                                78,750                    
Change in net unrealized gains during the year 488,631                  62,190                    

As of end of year 4,823,631$            4,335,000$            
 

As of December 31, 2017, the cost of securities fair valued through profit or loss was $2,387,213 (2016 – 
$2,387,213). 

The Company holds 30,000 (2016 – 30,000) shares of J.S. Johnson valued at $375,300 (2016 – $357,900) 
(Note 7) at a cost of $211,500 (2016 – $211,500). 

(ii) Held-to-Maturity Securities 

Held-to-Maturity securities consist of the following: 

Amortized 
Cost

Amortized 
Cost

Interest Rates Maturity 2017 Interest Rates Maturity 2016
Bahamas Electricity Corporation Bond 6.40% 2021 500,792         6.40% 2021 500,792         
Bahamas Government Registered Stock 4.39% - 4.88% 2019-2037 5,822,384      4.89% - 5.37% 2019-2037 5,831,727      
Bahamas Government Stock Tranche 1 6.25% 2044 501,370         6.25% 2044 501,370         
Bahamas Government Stock Tranche 2 4.50% 2022 1,021,674      4.50% 2022 1,021,674      
Clifton Heritage Authority 5.50% 2035 283,139         5.50% 2035 283,139         
College of The Bahamas 7.00% 2026 321,490         7.00% 2026 357,143         
Fidelity Bank (Bahamas) Ltd. 7.00% 2017 -                       7.00% 2017 507,000         
Fidelity Bank (Bahamas) Ltd. 6.00% 2018 100,510         6.00% 2018 100,510         
Nassau Airport Dev. Co. Senior Notes 8.50% 2031 425,000         8.50% 2031 458,364         
The Bridge Authority Bond 6.25% 2024 130,250         6.25% 2024 130,250         
Public Hospital Authority Ser A 6.00% 2033 854,840         6.00% 2033 908,267         

9,961,448$   10,600,236$ 
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8. Investments in Securities (continued) 

(ii) Held-to-Maturity Securities (continued) 

Included in amortized costs for held-to-maturity investments is accrued interest totalling $123,726 (2016 – 
$150,419). 

In accordance with the Note Purchase Agreement dated March 20, 2009, for Nassau Airport Development 
Company – Senior Secured Note, the issuer has exercised its rights under the Agreement to prepay the principal in 
a number of instalments until the maturity date in 2031. During 2017, the Company received $23,750 (2016 – 
$15,000) towards the principal of the Secured Note. 

In accordance with the Note Purchase Agreement dated June 24, 2011, for The College of The Bahamas, the 
issuer has exercised its rights under the Agreement to prepay the principal in a number of instalments until the 
maturity date in 2026. During 2017, the Company received $35,714 (2016 – $35,714) towards the principal of the 
Secured Note. 

In accordance with the Note Purchase Agreement dated November 13, 2013, for Public Hospital Authority, the 
issuer has exercised its rights under the Agreement to prepay the principal in a number of instalments until the 
maturity date in 2033. During 2017, the Company received $52,632 (2016 – $52,632) towards the principal of the 
Secured Note. 

(iii) Available-For-Sale Securities 

								

Fair Value Fair Value

No. of Shares 2017 No. of Shares 2016
APD Limited Series A 5.5% 1,000                       500,000         1,000               500,000                

Bank of The Bahamas Ltd. 6.75% 500                          500,000         500                  500,000                

Cable Bahamas Ltd B$ 5.75% Ser 6 539                          539,000         539                  539,000                

Cable Bahamas Ltd B$ 6.25% Ser 9 1,249                       1,249,500      1,249               1,249,500             

Cable Bahamas Ltd B$ 6.25% Ser 13 1,000                       1,000,000      1,000               1,000,000             

Commonw ealth Bank Ltd. 7% (perpetuity) 10,000                     1,000,000      10,000             1,000,000             

Grand Bahama Pow er Company 7.25% 184,030                   184,030         322,000           322,000                

High Yield Income Fund 25,000                     290,553         25,000             278,138                

Prime Income Fund Ser 4 100,000                   509,977         100,000           512,589                

5,773,060$    5,901,227$           
 

Included in prepayments and other receivables is $11,737 (2016 – $54,333) relating to dividends receivable at 
December 31, 2017. 
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10. Property, Plant and Equipment

11. Net Commissions Incurred
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9. Investment Property 

As at December 31, 2017, the Company’s investment property is comprised of one parcel of land, with a carrying 
value of $536,916 (2016 – $536,916). 

During 2016, an Investment property, which comprised land and building and had a net carrying value of $597,333, 
was sold at a loss of $97,333. A receivable from this sale of $350,000 will be repaid over 7 years at a rate of 7% in 
eighty-four (84) equal installments. At December 31, 2017 the receivable from this sale was $160,398 (2016 - 
$350,000). 

Investment property is assessed annually for any indication of impairment, one of the factors being considered is 
the estimated fair value. The Company has a policy in place to perform appraisals every three years for the 
purpose of facilitating impairment assessment only as the Company uses the cost method. 

No depreciation charged on land in the statement of comprehensive income (2016 – $7,822 was the depreciation 
charge on building). 

 
10. Property, Plant and Equipment 
 

 Land Building
Furniture & 
Equipment

Computer 
Equipment

Motor 
Vehicles Total

Cost
Balance as of January 1, 2017 467,704$        850,288$       210,273$         144,879$         46,795$         1,719,939$    
Additions                       -             61,675                 6,685                 3,600                      -             71,960 
Disposals -                     -                     (2,805)              (1,800)              -                    (4,605)            

Balance as of December 31, 2017 467,704$        911,963$       214,153$         146,679$         46,795$         1,787,294$    

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as of January 1, 2017 -$                   169,334$       185,302$         132,043$         25,348$         512,027$       
Depreciation charge -                     20,159           5,495               3,735               11,699           41,088           
Balance as of December 31, 2017 -$                   189,493$       190,797$         135,778$         37,047$         553,115$       

Net carrying value as of:

December 31, 2017 467,704$        722,470$       23,356$           10,901$           9,748$           1,234,179$    

December 31, 2016 467,704$        680,954$       24,971$           12,836$           21,447$         1,207,912$    
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10. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 
 

 Land Building
Furniture & 
Equipment

Computer 
Equipment Generator

Motor 
Vehicles Total

Cost

Balance as of January 1, 2016 467,704$        845,076$       199,476$         137,944$         -$                  46,795$         1,696,995$      

Additions                       -               5,212                 5,997                 6,935              4,800                       -               22,944 

Balance as of December 31, 2016 467,704$        850,288$       205,473$         144,879$         4,800$           46,795$         1,719,939$      

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as of January 1, 2016 -$                   152,259$       181,384$         128,785$         -$                  13,649$         476,077$         

Depreciation charge -                     17,075           3,918               3,258               11,699           35,950             

Balance as of December 31, 2016 -$                   169,334$       185,302$         132,043$         -$                  25,348$         512,027$         

Net carrying value as of:

December 31, 2016 467,704$        680,954$       20,171$           12,836$           4,800$           21,447$         1,207,912$      

December 31, 2015 467,704$        692,817$       18,092$           9,159$             -$                  33,146$         1,220,918$      
 

 

11. Net Commissions Incurred 

2017 2016

Commission earned from reinsurers (10,222,378)$             (10,513,632)$     

Commission expenses allocated to J.S. Johnson 10,699,226                10,994,361        

  476,848$                  480,729$           
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10. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 
 

 Land Building
Furniture & 
Equipment

Computer 
Equipment Generator

Motor 
Vehicles Total

Cost

Balance as of January 1, 2016 467,704$        845,076$       199,476$         137,944$         -$                  46,795$         1,696,995$      

Additions                       -               5,212                 5,997                 6,935              4,800                       -               22,944 

Balance as of December 31, 2016 467,704$        850,288$       205,473$         144,879$         4,800$           46,795$         1,719,939$      

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as of January 1, 2016 -$                   152,259$       181,384$         128,785$         -$                  13,649$         476,077$         

Depreciation charge -                     17,075           3,918               3,258               11,699           35,950             

Balance as of December 31, 2016 -$                   169,334$       185,302$         132,043$         -$                  25,348$         512,027$         

Net carrying value as of:

December 31, 2016 467,704$        680,954$       20,171$           12,836$           4,800$           21,447$         1,207,912$      

December 31, 2015 467,704$        692,817$       18,092$           9,159$             -$                  33,146$         1,220,918$      
 

 

11. Net Commissions Incurred 

2017 2016

Commission earned from reinsurers (10,222,378)$             (10,513,632)$     

Commission expenses allocated to J.S. Johnson 10,699,226                10,994,361        

  476,848$                  480,729$           
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12. Outstanding Claims and Net Claims Incurred
Included in the statement of comprehensive income is net claims incurred as follows:

Assumptions, Change in Assumptions and Sensitivity

     (i)       Process Used to Decide on Assumptions
The reserving process commences at the moment an insured reports a claim and there is prima facie evidence that the 
Company is liable under the policy. An initial reserve is established at that point based on the best information available. 
Assuming liability is subsequently confirmed, the reserve is revised whenever more detailed information becomes 
available concerning the nature of the injury or physical damage involved. The setting of reserves is the responsibility of 
the agency’s claims manager who will use external legal or other expert advice where appropriate. Where the initial reserve 
exceeds the agency’s claims settling threshold, the adequacy of the reserve will also be discussed with the Company. An 
established reserve is expected to be sufficient to meet the final cost of a claim whenever it is finally determined.

A provision for incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) claims has been established for each class of business and is monitored 
for accuracy at each year end. In determining the accuracy of the provision, management reviews the historical cost of 
IBNR claims and amends the provision, where necessary, taking into account statistical trends, and changes in the shape 
and size of the portfolio.

All claims reserves are established on a gross basis and the Company accounts to proportional reinsurers for their share 
through quarterly returns. Claims recoverables against Excess of Loss reinsurers are made on a case by case basis on 
proof of payment being established.

(ii)       Sensitivity Analysis – Claims Development
The development of long tail insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Company’s ability to estimate the ultimate 
value of claims. Accurate claims reserving is crucial to the long term health of the Company as it allows for more accurate 
pricing of products and also generates the necessary level of confidence on the part of both reinsurers and shareholders. 
Management uses a variety of statistical tools, including “Loss Triangulations” developed annually on an accident year 
basis to monitor the development of the Company’s long tail liabilities.

The following table shows the development of the Company’s claims costs by Accident year over the period of
2012 to 2017:
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12. Outstanding Claims and Net Claims Incurred 

Included in the statement of comprehensive income is net claims incurred as follows: 

2017 2016
Claims incurred 35,559,580$              63,133,830$      
Less: recoverable from insurers (32,102,454)               (58,948,177)       

3,457,126$                4,185,653$        
 

Assumptions, Change in Assumptions and Sensitivity 

(i) Process Used to Decide on Assumptions 

The reserving process commences at the moment an insured reports a claim and there is prima facie evidence that 
the Company is liable under the policy. An initial reserve is established at that point based on the best information 
available. Assuming liability is subsequently confirmed, the reserve is revised whenever more detailed information 
becomes available concerning the nature of the injury or physical damage involved. The setting of reserves is the 
responsibility of the agency’s claims manager who will use external legal or other expert advice where appropriate. 
Where the initial reserve exceeds the agency’s claims settling threshold, the adequacy of the reserve will also be 
discussed with the Company. An established reserve is expected to be sufficient to meet the final cost of a claim 
whenever it is finally determined. 

A provision for incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) claims has been established for each class of business and is 
monitored for accuracy at each year end. In determining the accuracy of the provision, management reviews the 
historical cost of IBNR claims and amends the provision, where necessary, taking into account statistical trends, 
and changes in the shape and size of the portfolio. 

All claims reserves are established on a gross basis and the Company accounts to proportional reinsurers for their 
share through quarterly returns. Claims recoverable against Excess of Loss reinsurers are made on a case by case 
basis on proof of payment being established. 
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12. Outstanding Claims and Net Claims Incurred (continued) 

(ii) Sensitivity Analysis – Claims Development 

The development of long tail insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Company’s ability to estimate the 
ultimate value of claims. Accurate claims reserving is crucial to the long-term health of the Company as it allows for 
more accurate pricing of products and also generates the necessary level of confidence on the part of both 
reinsurers and shareholders. Management uses a variety of statistical tools, including “Loss Triangulations” 
developed annually on an accident year basis to monitor the development of the Company’s long tail liabilities. 

The following table shows the development of the Company’s claims costs by Accident year over the period of 
2012 to 2017: 

Insurance Claims - Gross Accident Year 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Total
Estimate of ultimate costs at end of           
 accident year $    11,986,068    14,439,443    10,929,613    12,532,624    70,176,155    22,949,341      143,013,244 

   12,341,312    13,865,896    11,572,739    12,282,714    75,628,189 
   11,983,167    13,860,792    11,228,718    12,364,135 
   11,953,353    13,662,715    11,414,581 
   11,968,059    13,509,121 
   12,057,986 

Current estimate of cumulative claims $    12,057,986    13,509,121    11,414,581    12,364,135    75,628,189    22,949,341  $  147,923,353 

Cumulative payments to date $   (11,773,086)   (13,236,475)   (10,859,992)   (11,362,313)   (70,974,682)   (11,051,044)    (129,257,592)

Liability recognized in statement of f inancial position $         284,900         272,646         554,589      1,001,822      4,653,507    11,898,297  $    18,665,761 

Liability in respect of prior years
(1997 to 2011)          2,085,262 

Gross claims incurred included in statement of comprehensive income  $    20,751,023 
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12. Outstanding Claims and Net Claims Incurred

(iii) Movements in Outstanding Claims
As at December 31, 2017, outstanding claims of $20,751,023 (2016 – $44,539,856) are shown gross of reinsurance 
recoverable of $15,499,181 (2016 – $44,679,464) as disclosed in Note 4.

Included in gross outstanding claims is a provision of $1,050,000 (2016 – $7,421,798) for gross claims incurred but not 
reported as of the year end.

Reinsurance balances shown on the below table are shown net of recoverables under the excess of loss reinsurance for 
claims paid and outstanding.
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12. Outstanding Claims and Net Claims Incurred (continued) 

Insurance Claims - Net Retention       Accident 
Year 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Total
Estimate of ultimate costs at end of           
 accident year $        2,312,978        2,359,634        1,738,553        2,065,023      13,409,386        3,811,300           25,696,874 

       2,298,858        2,295,205        1,853,769        2,023,374      16,698,793 
       2,258,086        2,311,576        1,801,686        2,340,500 
       2,253,615        2,282,079        1,829,324 
       2,255,561        2,258,790 
       2,269,053 

Current estimate of cumulative claims $        2,269,053        2,258,790        1,829,324        2,340,500      16,698,793        3,811,300  $       29,207,760 

Cumulative payments to date $      (2,225,615)      (2,217,713)      (1,745,868)      (2,190,076)    (15,896,386)      (1,637,413)         (25,913,071)

Liability recognized in statement of f inancial position $             43,438             41,077             83,456           150,424           802,407        2,173,887  $         3,294,689 

Liability in respect of prior years

(1997 to 2011)                335,967 

Net claims incurred included in statement of comprehensive income  $         3,630,656 
 

(iii) Movements in Outstanding Claims 

As at December 31, 2017, outstanding claims of $20,751,023 (2016 – $44,539,856) are shown gross of 
reinsurance recoverable of $15,499,181 (2016 – $44,679,464) as disclosed in Note 4. 

Included in gross outstanding claims is a provision of $1,050,000 (2016 – $7,421,798) for gross claims incurred but 
not reported as of the year end. 

Reinsurance balances shown on the below table are shown net of recoverables under the excess of loss 
reinsurance for claims paid and outstanding. 
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12. Outstanding Claims and Net Claims Incurred (continued) 

2017 2016

Year Ended December 31 Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net

Outstanding claims at January 1 consists of: 

Notif ied claims  $    37,118,058 (30,666,183)$    $      6,451,875  $      8,542,799  $    (7,208,217)  $      1,334,582 

Incurred but not reported          7,421,798 (7,169,758)                   252,040             935,000           (782,050)             152,950 

Total claims outstanding 44,539,856$    (37,835,941)$   6,703,915$      9,477,799$      (7,990,267)$     1,487,532$      

Cash paid for claims settled in the year  $  (53,057,704)        45,965,233  $    (7,092,471)  $  (34,459,482)  $    30,995,836  $    (3,463,646)

Increase in liabilities
  arising in current year claims 32,722,870           (29,292,526)          3,430,344        62,861,024      (54,311,374)          8,549,650 

  arising from prior years claims          2,917,799 (2,247,841)                   669,958             173,717           (142,427)               31,290 

  movement in incurred but not reported        (6,371,798) 6,290,708                    (81,090)          6,486,798        (6,387,708)               99,090 

Total claims outstanding 20,751,023$    (17,120,367)$   3,630,656$      44,539,856$    (37,835,941)$   6,703,915$      

Outstanding claims at December 31 consists of:

Notif ied claims  $    19,701,023 (16,241,317)$    $      3,459,706  $    37,118,058  $  (30,666,183)  $      6,451,875 

Incurred but not reported          1,050,000 (879,050)                      170,950          7,421,798        (7,169,758)             252,040 

Total claims outstanding 20,751,023$    (17,120,367)$   3,630,656$      44,539,856$    (37,835,941)$   6,703,915$      

 

 
(iv) Unearned Premium Reserve 

(iv) Unearned Premium Reserve

2017 2016

Year Ended December 31 Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
At beginning of the year  $    20,766,914  $  (17,623,673)  $    3,143,241  $   20,702,878  $  (17,410,386)  $    3,292,492 

Net (decrease)/increase in the year 1,011,791        (797,423)          214,368                       64,036           (213,287)         (149,251)

Total at end of the year 21,778,705$    (18,421,096)$   3,357,609$     20,766,914$   (17,623,673)$   3,143,241$    
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(iv) Unearned Premium Reserve

Included in the statement of comprehensive income is the net increase in unearned premium reserve of $214,367 (2016 – 
net decrease of $149,250).

These provisions represent the liability for short-term insurance contracts for which the Company’s obligations are not 
expired at year-end.

13. General Reserve
The Company has made an appropriation to a general reserve for unforeseeable risks and future losses. The general 
reserve can only be distributed following approval by the Board of Directors.

14. Contingencies
In the normal course of its business, the Company is involved in various legal proceedings arising out of and incidental to 
its operations. Management of the Company does not anticipate that the losses, if any, incurred as a result of these legal 
proceedings will materially affect the financial position of the Company. 

15. Pension Plan
The Company’s employees are members of J.S. Johnson Pension Plan, a defined contribution plan covering all eligible 
employees. This plan provides for benefits to be paid upon retirement. Employees are required to contribute an amount 
equal to 5.00% of their eligible earnings, which is matched by the Company. The amount charged to income or loss in the 
statement of comprehensive income during the year for pension costs was $17,049 (2016 – $22,223).

16. Dividends
During 2017, the Board of Directors declared dividends in the amount of $0 (2016 – $878,770). As of December 31, 2017, 
dividends payable amounted to $20,505 (2016 – $20,505) included in accounts payable and accruals in the statement of 
financial position.

17. Risk Management
The Company is exposed to insurance risk and financial risk through its insurance assets and insurance liabilities, financial 
assets and financial liabilities. The insurance risk covers such things as the vagaries of the weather, the unpredictability of 
serious injury losses and fortuitous events such as outbreaks of fire. The main components of the financial risk are credit 
risk, liquidity risk and interest-rate risk. The Company’s financial performance is affected by its capacity to understand 
and effectively manage these risks. The Company’s challenge is not only to measure and monitor these risks but also to 
manage them as profit opportunities. A critical goal of the Company is to ensure that its financial assets are always more 
than sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance contracts. The following notes expand on the nature of the 
aforementioned risks and the manner in which the Company manages them.

(a)     Insurance Risk
Insurance risk is the risk that an insured event might occur. At the individual policy level and also at the portfolio level, there 
is uncertainty in terms of both frequency of occurrence and severity of loss. For any given portfolio of insurance contracts, 
where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and loss reserving, the principal risk that the Company faces is that 
claims and other costs might exceed premiums earned. This could occur because the frequency or severity of claims is 
greater than estimated or that estimated original policy rates prove not to be sustainable or a combination of both. 

Experience shows that the greater the commonality of risk within a class of business, the smaller will be the relative 
variability in the expected outcome.

In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less vulnerable to a deterioration in the loss experience in any particular class of 
business. The Company has developed its underwriting strategy to produce a diversified portfolio of insurance risks. Within 
each of the individual classes of business it has sought to achieve, wherever possible, a sufficiently large population of 
risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.
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12. Outstanding Claims and Net Claims Incurred (continued) 

2017 2016

Year Ended December 31 Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net

Outstanding claims at January 1 consists of: 

Notif ied claims  $    37,118,058 (30,666,183)$    $      6,451,875  $      8,542,799  $    (7,208,217)  $      1,334,582 

Incurred but not reported          7,421,798 (7,169,758)                   252,040             935,000           (782,050)             152,950 

Total claims outstanding 44,539,856$    (37,835,941)$   6,703,915$      9,477,799$      (7,990,267)$     1,487,532$      

Cash paid for claims settled in the year  $  (53,057,704)        45,965,233  $    (7,092,471)  $  (34,459,482)  $    30,995,836  $    (3,463,646)

Increase in liabilities
  arising in current year claims 32,722,870           (29,292,526)          3,430,344        62,861,024      (54,311,374)          8,549,650 

  arising from prior years claims          2,917,799 (2,247,841)                   669,958             173,717           (142,427)               31,290 

  movement in incurred but not reported        (6,371,798) 6,290,708                    (81,090)          6,486,798        (6,387,708)               99,090 

Total claims outstanding 20,751,023$    (17,120,367)$   3,630,656$      44,539,856$    (37,835,941)$   6,703,915$      

Outstanding claims at December 31 consists of:

Notif ied claims  $    19,701,023 (16,241,317)$    $      3,459,706  $    37,118,058  $  (30,666,183)  $      6,451,875 

Incurred but not reported          1,050,000 (879,050)                      170,950          7,421,798        (7,169,758)             252,040 

Total claims outstanding 20,751,023$    (17,120,367)$   3,630,656$      44,539,856$    (37,835,941)$   6,703,915$      

 

 
(iv) Unearned Premium Reserve 

(iv) Unearned Premium Reserve

2017 2016

Year Ended December 31 Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
At beginning of the year  $    20,766,914  $  (17,623,673)  $    3,143,241  $   20,702,878  $  (17,410,386)  $    3,292,492 

Net (decrease)/increase in the year 1,011,791        (797,423)          214,368                       64,036           (213,287)         (149,251)

Total at end of the year 21,778,705$    (18,421,096)$   3,357,609$     20,766,914$   (17,623,673)$   3,143,241$    
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12. Outstanding Claims and Net Claims Incurred (continued) 

2017 2016

Year Ended December 31 Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net

Outstanding claims at January 1 consists of: 

Notif ied claims  $    37,118,058 (30,666,183)$    $      6,451,875  $      8,542,799  $    (7,208,217)  $      1,334,582 

Incurred but not reported          7,421,798 (7,169,758)                   252,040             935,000           (782,050)             152,950 

Total claims outstanding 44,539,856$    (37,835,941)$   6,703,915$      9,477,799$      (7,990,267)$     1,487,532$      

Cash paid for claims settled in the year  $  (53,057,704)        45,965,233  $    (7,092,471)  $  (34,459,482)  $    30,995,836  $    (3,463,646)

Increase in liabilities
  arising in current year claims 32,722,870           (29,292,526)          3,430,344        62,861,024      (54,311,374)          8,549,650 

  arising from prior years claims          2,917,799 (2,247,841)                   669,958             173,717           (142,427)               31,290 

  movement in incurred but not reported        (6,371,798) 6,290,708                    (81,090)          6,486,798        (6,387,708)               99,090 

Total claims outstanding 20,751,023$    (17,120,367)$   3,630,656$      44,539,856$    (37,835,941)$   6,703,915$      

Outstanding claims at December 31 consists of:

Notif ied claims  $    19,701,023 (16,241,317)$    $      3,459,706  $    37,118,058  $  (30,666,183)  $      6,451,875 

Incurred but not reported          1,050,000 (879,050)                      170,950          7,421,798        (7,169,758)             252,040 

Total claims outstanding 20,751,023$    (17,120,367)$   3,630,656$      44,539,856$    (37,835,941)$   6,703,915$      

 

 
(iv) Unearned Premium Reserve 

(iv) Unearned Premium Reserve

2017 2016

Year Ended December 31 Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
At beginning of the year  $    20,766,914  $  (17,623,673)  $    3,143,241  $   20,702,878  $  (17,410,386)  $    3,292,492 

Net (decrease)/increase in the year 1,011,791        (797,423)          214,368                       64,036           (213,287)         (149,251)

Total at end of the year 21,778,705$    (18,421,096)$   3,357,609$     20,766,914$   (17,623,673)$   3,143,241$    
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17. Risk Management (continued)
At the macro level, the Company suffers from a lack of diversification in the sense that it only insures the non-life risks of 
individuals located in The Bahamas and Turks and Caicos; therefore, there is a concentration of insurance risk within the 
industry sector and territory in which the Company operates.
 
Casualty Insurance Risks
(i)     Frequency and Severity of Claims
The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors. Claims frequency can be influenced by changes 
in the size, composition, and quality of a portfolio. Changes in social/economic conditions can also severely impact 
claims frequency. Claim severity is impacted by such things as general inflation. In the case of liability claims, the most 
significant factor is the increasing level of awards for personal injury. Claims involving serious long term injury can take 
five years or more to settle.

The Company manages these risks by means of its well developed underwriting and reinsurance strategies and also by 
adopting a proactive approach to claims handling. The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the portfolio remains 
biased towards high quality risks. Underwriting guidelines are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria. The 
reinsurance arrangements include both proportional and catastrophe excess of loss coverage. The effect of such 
reinsurance arrangements is to limit the total net insurance loss that the Company can suffer in any one year.

(ii)    Sources of Uncertainty in the Estimation of Future Claim Payments
Claims on casualty contracts are payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Company is liable for all insured events that 
occur during the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the contract term. As a result, liability 
claims are settled over a long period of time and an element of the claims provision relates to IBNR claims and unexpired 
risks. Given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely in many cases that the final cost of a claim will vary 
significantly from the initial reserve. In calculating the estimated cost of outstanding claims (both reported or not), the 
Company uses various industry standard loss estimation techniques and the experience of its agents in settling claims 
of similar type.
 
Property Insurance Contracts
(i)   Frequency and Severity of Claims
For property insurance contracts, climatic changes are giving rise to more frequent severe extreme weather events (e.g. 
hurricanes, flooding, etc.) and their consequences. The Company has the right to re-price each individual risk on renewal. 
It also has the ability to impose or increase deductibles. Contracts are priced on the basis of the commercial replacement 
value of the properties and contents insured. The sum insured represents the maximum amount payable under a policy. 
The cost of repairing or rebuilding properties, the cost of providing indemnity for damaged or stolen contents and the 
time taken to restart business operations (business interruption insurances) are the key factors that influence the value 
of claims under these policies. The most likely cause of major loss under the property portfolio arises from a hurricane or 
other serious weather related event. The Company has reinsurance coverage in place to limit the impact of such losses 
in any one year.

The Company underwrites property insurance in The Bahamas and Turks and Caicos.

(ii)   Sources of Uncertainty in the Estimation of Future Claim Payments
The development of large losses/catastrophes is analyzed separately. Property claims can be estimated with greater 
reliability due to the shorter settlement period for these claims and relatively little IBNR is held at year-end.

(b)    Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the failure of a counterparty to perform according to the terms of the contract.  In the normal course 
of business, the Company seeks to limit its exposure to losses that may arise from any single occurrence. Reinsurance 
is primarily placed using a combination of proportional and excess of loss treaties. Obtaining reinsurance does not, 
however, relieve the Company of its primary obligations to the policyholders, therefore the Company is exposed to the risk 
that the reinsurers may be unable to fulfil their obligations under the contracts.  

The Company seeks to mitigate this risk by placing its reinsurance coverage with large multi-national companies and 
syndicates. The Company, with the assistance of its reinsurance broker, also evaluates the financial condition of its 
reinsurers and monitors the credit risk of the reinsurers on an ongoing basis to minimize its exposure to significant losses 
from reinsurer insolvency. The Company’s placement of reinsurance is diversified such that it is neither dependent on a 
single reinsurer nor are the operations of the Company substantially dependent upon any single reinsurance contract.

The Company’s main exposure to credit risk emanates from reinsurers in the form of prepaid premiums held or claims 
recoverables still to be made/paid under the various proportional and excess of loss treaties and is disclosed in total on 
the statement of financial position. It is the Company’s policy that no single counterparty exposure should exceed 25% 
of the total reinsurance assets at any given time. In addition, the Company’s proportional treaties contain a “Reinsurer 
Participation Review Clause”, which provides the Company with the option of cancelling any individual reinsurer’s 
participation whose financial strength rating (as determined by Standard & Poors and/or A.M. Best) falls below A- or 
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equivalent and to call for the return of prepaid premiums and loss reserves. The Company is required to serve notice of its 
intention within thirty days of the date of downgrade.
On its other financial assets the Company mitigates this risk as follows:
 •   places cash with credit-worthy banks; and

 •   invests in debt securities of The Bahamas Government, Government-backed companies
                   and financially sound companies.

(c)    Liquidity Risk
The objective of liquidity management is to ensure the availability of sufficient funds to honor all of the Company’s 
financial commitments including claims. The Company maintains a level of liquid assets, which mature or could be sold 
immediately to meet cash requirements for normal operating purposes. 

The tables included in Note 6 for term deposits and Note 8 for investments in securities shows the expected recovery or 
settlement of financial instruments held from the dates of acquisition. Cash and bank balances as disclosed in Note 5 
have original maturities of less than three months. 

The following summarizes the expected recovery or settlement of financial assets held (within 12 months from the 
reporting date) and the maturity profile of the Company’s liabilities relating to financial instruments and insurance 
contracts:
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17. Risk Management (continued) 

The tables included in Note 6 for term deposits and Note 8 for investments in securities show the expected 
recovery or settlement of financial instruments held from the dates of acquisition. Cash and bank balances as 
disclosed in Note 5 have original maturities of less than three months. 

The following summarizes the expected recovery or settlement of financial assets held (within 12 months from the 
reporting date) and the maturity profile of the Company’s liabilities relating to financial instruments and insurance 
contracts: 

Current Non-current Current Non-current

Year Ended December 31
Less than 12 

months
More than 12 

months Total
Less than 12 

months
More than 12 

months Total
 Cash and bank balances  $                 5,970,176  $                                -  $       5,970,176  $                 6,635,518  $                             -  $          6,635,518 
 Term deposits                     1,722,577                     3,038,480           4,761,057                     5,367,038                  4,584,473              9,951,511 
 Reinsurance recoveries                     7,869,440 7,629,741                           15,499,181                   39,247,525 5,431,939                            44,679,464 
 Due from agent                   11,755,435                                    -         11,755,435                   11,568,115                                 -            11,568,115 
 Deferred commission reserve                     5,394,368                                    -           5,394,368                     5,201,634                                 -              5,201,634 
 Prepaid reinsurance premiums                   18,421,096                                    -         18,421,096                   17,623,673                                 -            17,623,673 
 Prepayments and other receivables                     1,283,247                        160,398           1,443,645                     1,873,538                     350,000              2,223,538 
 Investment in securities 
   Fair value through profit or loss                     4,823,631                                    -           4,823,631                     4,335,000                                 -              4,335,000 
   Held-to-maturity                        100,510                     9,860,938           9,961,448                                    -                10,600,236            10,600,236 
   Available for sale                                    -                     5,773,060           5,773,060                                    -                  5,901,227              5,901,227 

Total 57,340,480$               26,462,617$               83,803,097$     91,852,041$               26,867,875$             118,719,916$      

Current Non-current Current Non-current

Financial liabilities
Less than 12 

months
More than 12 

months Total
Less than 12 

months
More than 12 

months Total
Unearned premium reserve  $               21,778,705  $                                -  $     21,778,705  $               20,766,914  $                             -  $        20,766,914 
Outstanding claims                   11,898,297 8,852,726                           20,751,023                   38,518,928 6,020,928                            44,539,856 
Unearned commission reserve                     4,984,489                                    -           4,984,489                     4,888,646                                 -              4,888,646 
Due to reinsurers                     7,204,336                                    -           7,204,336                   20,050,123                                 -            20,050,123 
Accounts payable and accruals                        367,634                          24,605              392,239                        416,750                       24,605                 441,355 

Total 46,233,461$               8,877,331$                 55,110,792$     84,641,361$               6,045,533$               90,686,894$        

Liquidity Gap 11,107,019$               17,585,286$               28,692,305$     7,210,680$                 20,822,342$             28,033,022$        

2017 2016

2017 2016
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(d) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and equity prices, will affect the Company’s 
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and 
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk for the Company is comprised of the risk that the value of financial assets may fluctuate significantly as 
a result of changes in market interest rates. The Company mitigates this risk by investing in interest-bearing assets with 
floating interest rates, or investing for short time periods. The rates of interest on financial instruments are disclosed in 
Notes 5, 6, and 8 in the financial statements.

The table below summarizes the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk. Included in the table are the Company’s assets 
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorized by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates.
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17. Risk Management (continued) 

(d) Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and equity prices, will affect the 
Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is 
to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk for the Company is comprised of the risk that the value of financial assets may fluctuate 
significantly as a result of changes in market interest rates. The Company mitigates this risk by investing in interest-
bearing assets with floating interest rates, or investing for short time periods. The rates of interest on financial 
instruments are disclosed in Notes 5, 6, and 8 in the financial statements. 

The table below summarizes the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk. Included in the table are the Company’s 
assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorized by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates. 

At December 31, 2017 Up to 3 3 Months to 1 Year to Over    Non-Interest   
Months 1 Year 5 Years 5 Years Bearing Total

Assets
Cash & bank balances  $                   -  $                   -  $                   -  $                   -  $      5,970,176  $         5,970,176 
Term deposits                       -        1,722,577        3,038,480                       -                         -             4,761,057 
Reinsurance recoverables                       -                       -                       -                       -        15,499,181           15,499,181 
Due from agent                       -                       -                       -                       -        11,755,435           11,755,435 
Deferred commission reserve                       -                       -                       -                       -          5,394,368             5,394,368 
Prepaid reinsurance premium                       -                       -                       -                       -        18,421,096           18,421,096 
Prepayments and other receivables                       -                       -                       -                       -          1,443,645             1,443,645 
Investments in securities
  Fair value                       -                       -                       -                       -          4,823,631             4,823,631 
  Held-to-maturity                       -                       -        1,791,100        8,170,348                         -             9,961,448 
  Available for sale                       -                       -                       -        5,773,060                         -             5,773,060 

 $                 -    $    1,722,577  $    4,829,580  $  13,943,408  $    63,307,532  $       83,803,097 

Liabilities
Unearned premium reserve  $                   -  $                   -  $                   -  $                   -  $    21,778,705  $       21,778,705 
Outstanding claims                       -                       -                       -                       -        20,751,023           20,751,023 
Unearned commission reserve                       -                       -                       -                       -          4,984,489             4,984,489 
Due to reinsurers                       -                       -                       -                       -          7,204,336             7,204,336 
Accounts payable and accruals                       -                       -                       -                       -             392,239                392,239 

 $                 -    $                 -    $                 -    $                 -    $    55,110,792  $       55,110,792 

Total interest sensitivity gap  $                 -    $    1,722,577  $    4,829,580  $  13,943,408  $      8,196,740  $       28,692,305 
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At December 31, 2017, an increase of 25 basis points in interest rates with all other variables remaining constant, would 
have increased the net income of the Company by approximately $66,164 (2016 – $82,721). A decrease of 25 basis 
points would have an opposite effect with all other variables remaining constant.

Price Risk
Price risk is the risk that the value of the financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, 
whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all financial instruments 
traded in the market.

As the Company’s investments in securities at fair value through profit or loss are carried at fair value with fair value 
changes recognized in income or loss in the statement of comprehensive income, all changes in market conditions will 
directly affect operating income.

The Company is exposed to price risks arising from equity investments. Price risk is mitigated by the Company by 
investing in a diversified portfolio of instruments. Equity investments are held for strategic rather than trading purposes 
and the Company does not actively trade these investments.

18. Capital Management
Externally imposed capital requirements are set by The Insurance Commission of the Bahamas (“the Commission”) 
and by the Financial Services Commission in Turks and Caicos Islands (“TCI”). These requirements are put in place to 
ensure that the Company meets the relevant capital and solvency margins under the respective laws of The Bahamas 
and TCI.

The Company is registered under the Insurance Act 2005 (“the Act”) and has met the required minimum paid up and 
unencumbered capital of $2,000,000. The Company maintains a statutory deposit in respect of its insurance business 
in The Bahamas, in accordance with Section 43(2) of the Act and regulation 62 of the Insurance (General) Regulations, 
2012 (“the Regulations”). The Company established a Statutory Deposit Trust (“the Trust”) in the sum of $1,000,000 
with a recognized financial institution appointed as trustees of the Trust and the Insurance Commission of the Bahamas 
(“the Commission”) as the protectors of the Trust; the deposit is included in the statement of financial position (refer to 
Note 6).

Solvency ratios are established on the basis of risk assessment for each particular entity. The Company is required to 
meet a minimum margin of solvency. The Act defines insolvency as the inability of the Company to pay its debts if, at any 
time, the value of its admissible assets does not exceed its liabilities by such amount as the Commission may prescribe. 
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17. Risk Management (continued) 

At December 31, 2016 Up to 3 3 Months to 1 Year to Over    Non-Interest   
Months 1 Year 5 Years 5 Years Bearing Total

Assets
Cash & bank balances  $    6,635,518  $                   -  $                   -  $                   -  $                     -  $         6,635,518 
Term deposits                       -        5,367,038        4,584,473                       -                         -             9,951,511 
Reinsurance recoverables                       -                       -                       -                       -        44,679,464           44,679,464 
Due from agent                       -                       -                       -                       -        11,568,115           11,568,115 
Deferred commission reserve                       -                       -                       -                       -          5,201,634             5,201,634 
Prepaid reinsurance premium                       -                       -                       -                       -        17,623,673           17,623,673 
Prepayments and other receivables                       -                       -                       -                       -          2,223,538             2,223,538 
Investments in securities
  Fair value                       -                       -                       -                       -          4,335,000             4,335,000 
  Held-to-maturity                       -                       -        2,298,101        8,302,135                         -           10,600,236 
  Available for sale                       -                       -                       -        5,901,227                         -             5,901,227 

 $    6,635,518  $    5,367,038  $    6,882,574  $  14,203,362  $    85,631,424  $     118,719,916 

Liabilities
Unearned premium reserve  $                   -  $                   -  $                   -  $                   -  $    20,766,914  $       20,766,914 
Outstanding claims                       -                       -                       -                       -        44,539,856           44,539,856 
Unearned commission reserve                       -                       -                       -                       -          4,888,646             4,888,646 
Due to reinsurers                       -                       -                       -                       -        20,050,123           20,050,123 
Accounts payable and accruals                       -                       -                       -                       -             441,355                441,355 

 $                 -    $                 -    $                 -    $                 -    $    90,686,894  $       90,686,894 

Total interest sensitivity gap  $    6,635,518  $    5,367,038  $    6,882,574  $  14,203,362  $    (5,055,470)  $       28,033,022 
 

At December 31, 2017, an increase of 25 basis points in interest rates with all other variables remaining constant, 
would have increased the net income of the Company by approximately $66,164 (2016 – $82,721). A decrease of 
25 basis points would have an opposite effect with all other variables remaining constant. 

Price Risk 

Price risk is the risk that the value of the financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, 
whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all financial 
instruments traded in the market. 



ICB 2017

Of the value of admissible assets, at least 75% must be in the form of qualifying assets, as defined in regulation 70 of 
the Regulations.

As at December 31, 2017, the Company has complied with the regulatory imposed capital requirement, met the
required restricted deposit and exceeded the minimum margin of solvency required under the Act.

The Company is registered as a Foreign Ordinary Company in accordance with the Insurance Ordinance 1989 
(“Ordinance”) in TCI and as such the Company’s annual return, pursuant to section 4 of the Ordinance, includes the filing 
of the solvency margins on the consolidated business and TCI domestic business. The Company is required to maintain 
a minimum solvency margin relating to an excess of permitted assets over its liabilities. In addition, the Company is 
required to maintain a restricted deposit, as approved by the Financial Services Commission in TCI, with an approved 
financial institution in TCI, and as such $500,000 is included in term deposits in the statement of financial position (refer 
to Note 6).

Due a timing difference between the settlement of reinsurance recoverable and the unsettled outstanding claims 
for the Turk & Caicos jurisdiction after the passage of Hurricane Irma in September 2017, the Company’s net worth 
within the domicile as at December 31, 2017 did not meet the required solvency margin of 20% of net annual premiums. 
However, the Company will meet the solvency margin requirements as this temporary timing difference are expected to 
be resolved by the second quarter of 2018. Additionally, due to extensive losses experienced by the entire industry within 
the domicile, there is only a remote likelihood of negative consequences from the regulator. As at December 31, 2017, 
the Company has met the required restricted deposit and its solvency requirement in accordance with the Ordinance.

19. Subsequent Events
Subsequent to December 31, 2017 up to the date of these financial statements, no events have incurred that would
significantly impact these financial statements.
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